
6:30 PM Executive Session – Real Estate, Contract 

Bellefonte Borough  
Council Work Session 

7:00 – 7:25 PM  
Monday, October 2nd, 2023 

Council Chambers 

AGENDA 

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 
   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 
   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/d8oyMCfBH-0. Recordings can be viewed on CNET,  
   Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 
   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please contact the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov  
   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, October 2, 2023, to receive the Zoom Link  
   to the meeting. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS
A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session.  No council

action (the making of motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.
B) Trivia Question – Council Member Bernier

III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:
A) 2024 Budget: Review 09 Refuse Fund, 70 EMS Fund, 03 Fire Department Fund, &

04 Fire Equipment Fund – 25 minutes

IV. ADJOURNMENT
The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is
scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 1 of 84

https://youtube.com/live/d8oyMCfBH-0
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 2 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 3 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 4 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 5 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 6 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 7 of 84



 
Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services 

 

369 Phoenix Avenue, Bellefonte, Pa. 16823 
Office (814) 355-2907, Fax (814) 355-8702 

September 18, 2023 

 

 

Borough of Bellefonte 

Borough Council & Mayor 

236 W. Lamb Street 

Bellefonte, Pa 16823 

 

 

Dear Council Members & Mayor,  

 

Bellefonte EMS is making a formal request for consideration in your 2024 borough budget for $51,055 

financial support, the equivalent of 1/2 mill (0.5 mill) based on current assessment values.  Our request 

would impact borough residents $8.36 per person or $17.84 per household annually.  We believe that 

investment is a minimal price, seriously $0.05/day/household, for an essential emergency service to the 

community.  

 

Municipal funding support is directed towards vehicle/equipment replacement and updates in addition to 

supporting increases towards a living wage for our staff, which currently starts at only $13.00/hr.  Due to 

restrictions in the borough’s tax resolution, your contributions exclude personnel costs and are directed 

toward updating vehicles, equipment, and other operating costs such as property/liability insurance, fuel, 

and vehicle repairs. 

  

We believe wholeheartedly that all municipalities served should be participating equitably, those concerns 

has been made known to each municipality as well, including those that voluntarily choose to benefit 

without fair contributions.  However, when funding is held back because of the failures of others, it only 

penalizes our dedicated staff that are on the frontline 24/7 actually providing services to people in your 

community.  It fails to penalize the other municipality(s) for their lack of action.  We continue attempts to 

educate all of our municipalities and residents, however in some cases essential emergency services are not 

valued or are ignored, that is until no one shows up to their home when 911 is called.     

 

We greatly appreciate and thank you for your assistance in past years and your continued support is needed 

so that we can provide reliable emergency response to the residents and businesses of your community into 

the future.  We believe that it is more responsible to support and improve the existing system than it would 

be to rebuild after it has collapsed. 

 

I would be glad to attend a council meeting or a budget work session to explain further or answer questions.  

Thank you for your consideration of this important issue.   

  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

S. Scott Rhoat BS, NRP 

Executive Director/Chief    

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 8 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 9 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 10 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 11 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 12 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 13 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 14 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 15 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 16 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 17 of 84



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough 

Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM Monday, October 2nd, 2023 

Council Chambers  

 

AGENDA 
 

   VIEW LIVE FEED/RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL 

   MEETINGS– Council Work Sessions and Council Business Meetings can be viewed live on 

   YouTube at https://youtube.com/live/d8oyMCfBH-0. Recordings can be viewed on CNET,  

   Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at www.cnet1.org 

   ATTEND VIRTUALLY- Please contact the Borough via email: boro@bellefontepa.gov  

   or phone: 814-355-1501 before 4:00 PM on Monday, October 2, 2023, to receive the Zoom Link  

   to the meeting. 

I. 7:30 PM CALL TO ORDER 

Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council business meeting. 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE FOLLOWED BY A MOMENT OF SILENCE  
 

III.   ROLL CALL 
 

Mr. Bernier, Vice-President, North Ward  Ms. McKean, West Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Dann, South Ward   Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Mr. Johnson, President, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official action on it with 

some exceptions.  The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies.  Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote.  The Council should state the reason why the 

action item is being added to the agenda.  Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or any 

comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come to the 

podium at the appropriate time, and state your name and address and which item you are speaking about. Please 

try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

 

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 18 of 84

https://youtube.com/live/d8oyMCfBH-0
http://www.cnet1.org/
mailto:boro@bellefontepa.gov


2 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
 

PennDOT Conversation about Electric Vehicle Charging Dates and Locations.  FYI. No council action is requested. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. 

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be 

removed for separate action. Council Action Requested 
 

General Council Meeting Minutes September 19, 2023 

 

Call for a motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda 

VIII. REPORTS 
 

Please try to limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ National Fire Prevention Week October 8-14, 2023 Proclamation 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)  Ms. Thompson Submitted 

 

Motion/2nd to remove the DBI Mural Project from the table. 

Motion/2nd to approve the following HARB project: 

➢ DBI Mural Project for back of building at 123 S. Allegheny Street 

 

Motion/2nd to approve - Resolution No. 10022023-01 to recognize the 

service of Patricia Long to the Bellefonte HARB 

 

Motion/2nd to approve Marc McMaster as the new real estate broker 

representative on HARB.  

 
 

IX. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
 

South Spring Street Streetscape Project Schedule. FYI, no council action requested. 

Centre County Boroughs Association Fall Meeting, 6:00 PM, Wednesday, October 18th.  Speaker Invitation to State 

Representative Kerry Benninghoff.  LB Water has agreed to sponsor the meeting.  Please let Alyssa Doherty know if you 

plan to attend.  FYI. No council action is requested. 

Police Department Renovation Update. FYI. No council action is requested. 

EV Charging Stations –removal of Charing Stations. Motion/2nd to approve the removal of EV Charging Stations within 

the Borough Lots.  

Removal of Shade Trees within the Downtown. Motion/2nd to approve removing and replacing three trees in the 

Downtown conditional to approval from the Shade Tree Commission.  

John Nastase Construction bid withdrawal for Parkview Heights Stormwater Project. FYI. No council action is requested. 
 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Aggressive Bees within the Borough Memo. Motion/2nd to declare Aggressive Bees a nuisance within the Borough. 

 
 

XI. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 19 of 84



3 
 

 The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 
 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2023 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 20 of 84



LET US KNOW 
YOU’RE JOINING US!

penndot.pa.gov/EV

ra-pdevcorridors@pa.gov

When
and Where

Register Online

MONDAY, OCTOBER 16
5:00 - 7:00 p.m.

Gettysburg Heritage Center 
297 Steinwehr Ave, Gettysburg, PA 17325

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 19
6:00 - 8:00 p.m.

Graystone Mansion/Harcum College Coatesville, 
53 S. 1st Avenue, Coatesville, PA 19320 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 23
5:00 - 7:00 p.m. 

Michael Ross Event Center
144 W 3rd St, Williamsport, PA 17701

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 1
5:00 - 7:00 p.m.

H. O. Hirt Auditorium at Blasco Library 
160 E Front Street, Erie, PA 16507

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 2
6:00 - 8:00 p.m. 

Goggleworks 
201 Washington Street, Reading, PA 19601

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8
6:00 - 8:00 p.m.

Southwestern Pennsylvania Commission (SPC)
42 21st Street, Suite 101, Pittsburgh, PA 15222

FOR A CONVERSATION ABOUT
ELECTRIC VEHICLE 

CHARGING

JOIN US 

PennDOT wants to 

hear from you on 

your community and 

business needs for 

electric vehicle 

charging. 

Why Join US
Learn about Electric Vehicle (EV) initiatives 
and funding opportunities. 

Provide your thoughts about EVs and the 
needs in your community.

INTERACTIVE DISCUSSION
Talk to us about your community's needs and 
how EVs fits in.

PROVIDE YOUR FEEDBACK
Ensure your community’s needs are met and 
your feedback is included for future planning.

English Espanol

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 21 of 84



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 
September 18, 2023- 7:30 p.m. 

236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
The September 18, 2023 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 
p.m. 
 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (followed by a moment of silence) 
 
III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 
     Mr. Randall Brachbill (Zoom) 
     Ms. Deborah Cleeton  
     Ms. Barbara Dann 
     Mr. Douglas Johnson  
     Ms. Shawna McKean 
     Ms. Rita Purnell 
     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick 
     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey  
     Mayor Buddy Johnson 
   
STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 
    Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 NONE 
 
V.  PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments 
NONE 

 
VI. COMMUNICATIONS  
 PA Howard Fire Company Punkin Chunkin Fall Festival Need for Fire Police Participation.  

 
Bernier motioned and Dann seconded to approve use of the Bellefonte Fire Police, if available, 
to assist Howard Fire Company at the Punkin’ Chunkin Fall Festival on Saturday, October 
21st, 2023. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 22 of 84

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Sept 18, 2023 
Page 2 
 
Centre County Recycling and Refuse Authority Municipality Report for September 2023. No 
council action is requested. 
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 
1. General  Council Meeting Minutes September 5, 2023 
2. Finance Budget V. Actual August 2023 
3. Finance Budget V. Actual Summary August 2023 
4. Finance Stover McGlaughlin Invoice August 2023 
5. Finance Treasurer’s Report August 2023 
6. Finance Voucher Summary August 2023 

 
Cleeton motioned and Dann seconded to approve the Consent Agenda items. No discussion. Roll 
Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

VIII. REPORTS   
Mayor Johnson  
The mayor and Chief Weaver have a meeting scheduled next week to discuss the Crime Prevention 
Symposium that Chief Weaver attended.  

 
Police – Chief Weaver  

September 2023 Police Report and Parking Enforcement and Animal Control September 2023 
Report provided.  
 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 
1. Recommended for approval (Specific motions are stated in the OCA memo): 
DBI Mural Project for back of building at 123 S. Allegheny Street 

 
Tosti-Vasey motioned and Bernier seconded to approve the Mural Project as presented. 
Discussion included several Council members expressing their concern over not seeing the 
mural design. It was clarified that HARB has seen the design and they do not want to 
prematurely “reveal” the design, as the artists are hoping to have a grand reveal of the mural 
after it is painted. It was also discussed that HARB meetings are public meetings and Council 
members could have attended the meeting to see the proposed design. Several members 
continued to express concern about approving a project without seeing the design.  
 
Tosti-Vasey motioned to amend the motion to table this approval until a picture of the project 
design can be presented to Council at the next meeting. Sedgwick seconded. Roll Call Vote. 
Motion to table carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 23 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Sept 18, 2023 
Page 3 
 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  

  
Liaison Reports  (Reports were submitted) 
Borough Manager (Report submitted) 
 
IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
Centre County Boroughs Association Fall Meeting, 6:00 PM, October 18th. Speaker Invitation to 
State Representative Kerry Benninghoff. LB Water has agreed to sponsor the meeting. Please let 
Alyssa Doherty know if you plan to attend. No council action is requested. 

 
PA Boroughs Association Fall Leadership Conference October 13-15, 2023 in Bayfront Landing, 
Erie. Council may register by contacting Alyssa Doherty. Deadline to register is September 19, 
2023. No council action is requested. 

 
S. Spring Street Streetscape Project using TASA Grant Memo.  

 
Dann motioned and McKean seconded to remove parking space adjacent from Smoker’s 
Express.  No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill         yay Ms. Rita Purnell                          yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson           yay  
 
Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to change the 1st parking space on S. Spring Street 
from Long Term Parking to a metered space. No discussion. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yay 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 
 

Stage/Bandshell Discussion Pre-Meeting is scheduled for Thursday, September 21st at 3:00 pm 
in Council Chambers. No council action is requested. 

 
The Bellefonte High School Class of 1966 would like to honor fellow classmate, Frank Sciabica, 
with a plaque for his work within Talleyrand Park. Council may take action and accept or decline 
the Talleyrand Park Committee recommendation to not allow a plaque be displayed in the park 
but alternatively be hung at the Train Station or a Brick be added to the pathway. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 24 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Sept 18, 2023 
Page 4 
 

Mr. Stewart offered updated information that the Class of 1966 decided they would like to name 
the suspension bridge after Mr. Sciabica. This item will be discussed again at the next meeting 
once the Talleyrand Park Committee has more information to present. 

 
X.  NEW BUSINESS 
 Request for Alternative Fuels Tax Memo.  

 
Purnell motioned and Dann seconded to increase the EV Charging Station cost from $2.00/ 
hour to $3.00/ hour to cover the cost of the Alternative Fuels Tax. Discussion included 
clarification of why the cost increase is necessary. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 
 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             no 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

Joseph Masullo Memorial Park installation of a Streetlight for better visibility.  
 
Dann motioned and Cleeton seconded for staff to contact West Penn Power about installing a 
Streetlight in Joseph Masullo Memorial Park. Discussion included type of light, need for the 
light and costs. Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yay Ms. Shawna McKean                  yay 
Mr. Randy Brachbill          yay Ms. Rita Purnell                           yay 
Ms. Deb Cleeton               yay Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yay 
Ms. Barbara Dann            yay Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             no 
Mr. Doug Johnson            yay  
 

 
XI. COUNCIL COMMENTS FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Members may offer comments regarding various events and issues within the Borough.  

 
Ms. Purnell commended the tire event that was recently held. She also mentioned several 
upcoming Borough events. 

 
Ms. Cleeton asked about a Jr. Council Person program. She encouraged Council to consider 
encouraging the future generation to get involved with local government.   

 
Ms. Tosti-Vasey commented on several borough issues. 

 
Mr. Holderman commented on several borough projects that are in progress or being planned. 

• Street paving has been delayed  
• Parkview Heights – preconstruction meeting next week. Project will likely start in Oct. 

(Stormwater project) 
• Spring Street Streetscape project will also begin in October. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 25 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 
Sept 18, 2023 
Page 5 
 

• Armory project is delayed but moving forward. 
• Land development plan for Musser Lane 
 

Mr. Stewart commented that Council staff received the Land Development Plan for the new 
Elementary School. Traffic studies are not complete and the Borough continues to work with the 
district to move this project forward.  Airport Road, Zion Road and Governor’s Park Road are all 
affected. There may need to be a public meeting to discuss the project and concerns. 

 
Ms. Dann commented about the Penn Highlands College project. She would like Council to help 
if possible. Members discussed several concerns with the project and options for locations, 
including the former Black Walnut Body Shop location and the former Centre Crest location. A 
huge concern is parking.  

 
Ms. Sedgwick mentioned that the Homecoming Parade is this coming Thursday. Residents along 
the parade route should plan accordingly and she encouraged the community to come out and 
support our district.  

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT   
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:26 p.m.  
 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 26 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 27 of 84



 

WHEREAS, Borough of Bellefonte is committed to ensuring the safety and security of all those living in 
and visiting Bellefonte Borough: and 

WHEREAS, Bellefonte Borough residents should identify places in their homes where fires can start and 
eliminate those hazards; and 

WHEREAS, Bellefonte Borough residents who have planned and practiced a home fire escape plan are more 
prepared and will therefore be more likely to survive a fire; and 

WHEREAS, working smoke. alarms cut the risk of dying in reported home fires in half; and 

WHEREAS, Bellefonte Borough residents should install smoke alarms in every sleeping room, outside each 
separate sleeping area, and on every level of the home; and 

WHEREAS,  Bellefonte Borough residents should listen for the sound of the smoke alarm and when it 
sounds respond by going outside immediately to the designated meeting place; and 

WHEREAS, the 2023 Fire Prevention Week theme ” Fire Won't Wait. Plan Your Escape" effectively serves 
to remind us that we need to know two different ways out of our homes and have a meeting place 
outside of our homes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor of Bellefonte Borough, do hereby proclaim the 
week of October 8th -14th, 2023 as 
 

NATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
 

in Bellefonte Borough and urge all the citizens of the Borough to be aware of their surroundings and look 
for available ways out in the event of a fire or other emergency, create a home escape plan which you 
practice with your families, respond when the smoke alarm sounds by exiting the building immediately, and 
to support the public safety activities and efforts of Bellefonte Fire Company Emergency Services during the 
2023 Fire Prevention Week. 

 
              __________________________________ 
               Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor  
            October 2, 2023 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 28 of 84



MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:  Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM: Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator  
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE:  For Council Meeting October 2, 2023 

 
HARB: 

 
HARB met in person on Tuesday, September 26, 2023. This was our first time holding a 
meeting in person since 2020. The agenda and minutes are in your packet.  
 
Pat Long, after 13+ years of serving on the HARB board, resigned. The HARB is incredibly 
thankful for her service and her commitment to historic preservation in Bellefonte. I have 
included a Resolution to recognize her service to the HARB and Bellefonte Borough.  
 
Marc McMaster, Real Estate Agent and owner of RE/MAX Centre Realty, has applied to fill the 
real estate broker seat on the HARB. His application and resume are attached.  
 
HARB recommends approval of Marc McMaster for the HARB.  
 
HARB received four proposals for the CLG grant to update the Bellefonte Historic Guidelines. 
HARB will review each proposal and make a recommendation at their next meeting. They are 
from:  
 Carmina Wood Design, out of Greensboro NC and Buffalo NY 
 McKissick Architecture, out of Harrisburg 
 Landmarks SGA, out of Pittsburgh 
 Design by CBL, Architecture, out of Bellefonte 

 
Recommended for approval/the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness: 
 
 DBI Mural Project, design proposal (123 S. Allegheny Street) – A recording of the 

HARB meeting was sent to borough council via email and the PowerPoint presentation 
from Alex Hall is included in your packet.   

o Update from Alex on 9/27: DBI Mural Committee has decided to do this project in 
2024 because of the adjusted approval timeline and the upcoming cooler 
weather. 

 
Motion to approve the mural design presented by Alex Hall, AH Consulting.  
 
Administrative Approvals:  
 102 S. Allegheny Street (Courthouse) – retaining wall and sidewalks 
 109 E. Bishop (Elisabeth Joseph Jewelers) – Business sign 
 251 N. Allegheny (Setaro) – Shed reconstructions in place of former outhouse  
 222 W. High Street (Bush Arcade) – shingle to shingle replacement  
 464 E. Curtin Street (White) – exterior paint (brick will not be painted)  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 29 of 84



 
If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 

not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov. 

 120 E. Cherry (Herlocker) – shingle to shingle roof replacement 
 410 N. Allegheny (Tressler) – shingle to shingle roof replacement  
 120 E Cherry Lane (Herlocker) – shingle to shingle roof replacement 

 
 

ZONING: 
 

Zoning Hearing Board 
 
The determination meeting for the hearing of 1304 Summit Drive (Robins Nest) had to be 
postponed until late October. The meeting is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, October 25. 
I still need to get confirmation from all parties that this date is available.  
 
 

PLANNING: 
 
Planning Commission 
 
The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 9 at 5:00 p.m. in 
Council Chambers. At this time there are no projects to review. The Planning Commission will 
review the new Bellefonte Elementary LDP at the November meeting.  
 
Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission 
 
NVJPC met Thursday, September 21, 2023, at 6 PM in the Walker Township Municipal Building, 
816 Nittany Valley Drive, Bellefonte, PA, 16823. 
 
The commission discussed several items, including the Fire Study grant from DCED, CCMPO 
updates, Bridge Bundle updates, Nittany Valley Region fact sheets, and various zoning and 
planning projects in each of the municipalities.  
 
The deadline for municipalities to submit requests for the County Liquid Fuels Program is 
Friday, October 20, 2023 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 30 of 84



AGENDA 

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
DATE: SEPTEMBER 26TH 2023 TIME: 8:30AM 

BOROUGH MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 236 W. LAMB STREET, BELLEFONTE 
 

 
Call to Order:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Sam McGinley, Chair Gay Dunne  
Megan Tooker Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Walt Schneider Amy Kelchner  
Mike Leakey   
Pat Long   
Maria Day   
Philip Ruth   

 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
- Amy Kelcher email about Trinity (at table) 
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: September 12, 2023 meeting minutes  
 
 
Project Review and Public Comments:  
 
 123 S. Spring Street (VFW) – Removal of damaged and falling brick above solder 

course on front of the building. Top cap to be replaced with new flashing. Replace where 
applicable. * exterior to be painted at later date (proposed) 

o Gina sent photos of the VFW to HARB on 9/19. They show that the brick was 
originally red and has been painted yellow. The paint is peeling all over the 
building and is in bad shape. The recommendation would be to scrape/remove 
the paint before adding another layer and if permitted to re-paint, to use a high-
quality latex paint that won’t be as susceptible to peeling in the future. Cleaning 
the brick and adding a primer first is recommended.  

o Photos can be found here: https://bellefontepa-
my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gs
svw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C  

 
Eric Williams, contractor for the project, and the Commander for the VFW will be present to 
discuss the VFW project.  

 
 

Administrative Approvals:  
 
 102 S. Allegheny Street (Courthouse) – retaining wall and sidewalks 
 109 E. Bishop (Elisabeth Joseph Jewelers) – Business sign 
 251 N. Allegheny (Setaro) – Shed reconstructions in place of former outhouse  
 222 W. High Street (Bush Arcade) – shingle to shingle roof replacement  

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 31 of 84

https://bellefontepa-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C
https://bellefontepa-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C
https://bellefontepa-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C


 464 E. Curtin Street (White) – exterior paint (brick will not be painted)  
 120 E. Cherry (Herlocker) – shingle to shingle roof replacement 
 410 N. Allegheny (Tressler) – shingle to shingle replacement  

 
 
Information / Discussion Items: 
 Gutters – K-style vs. Half rounds 

 
 

Old Business: 
 128 W Howard Street (Trinity Church) – see Amy Kelchner’s email regarding the 

gutter replacement and installation and cost.  
 

 225 W. Lamb Street – metal roof without HARB approval 
o I reached out to Solar Shield on 9/20/2023 and talked to a representative there. I 

explained the situation and asked that product information and spec information 
be emailed to me. I am waiting for that information.  

 
(Walt wasn’t at the last meeting so I wanted to revisit this) 
 434 N. Spring Street – roof without HARB approval. sent letter, didn’t respond by 

deadline, can we enforce our ordinance using Code?  
o I sent a letter on August 2, 2023 with a deadline of August 31, 2023 to submit an 

application for the roof replacement that was done without prior HARB approval.  
o I have not gotten a response by the deadline. Can we enforce our ordinance 

using Centre Region Code.  
 
 
New Business:  
 Pat Long resignation (sent Sam McGinley a letter) 

 
 Marc McMaster, Real Estate Broker with Re/Max Centre Realty  

o Resume and volunteer application included in packet 
o Recommend approval for open real estate broker seat on HARB 

 
 Opening of CLG proposals to update Design Guidelines 

 
 
Adjournment: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 32 of 84



BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 
CENTRE COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

RESOLUTION NO. 10022023-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF 
PATRICIA LONG TO THE BELLEFONTE HISTORIC ARCHITECTUAL REVIEW BOARD  

WHEREAS, Patricia Long has served faithfully as a member of the Borough of Bellefonte Historic 
Architectural Review Board for over thirteen years; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long’s commitment to the board, leadership, and knowledge about history 
and historic preservation in the Borough of Bellefonte aided in evaluating the proposed rehabilitation of 
properties in the Historic District; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long has been faithful in assisting the Bellefonte HARB by educating her real 
estate community and clients about the value and benefits of preserving historic properties; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long has used her profession as a real estate broker in promoting historic 
preservation in Bellefonte Borough and throughout the Centre County region; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long brought her long-time experience and knowledge of local real estate 
and housing trends into discussions of the HARB; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long’s understanding and respect for heritage guided the HARB in making 
informed decisions that balanced preservation objectives with practical considerations; and 

WHEREAS, Patricia Long ended her service as a member of the Historic Preservation Board in 
September 2023;  

NOW, therefore, be it resolved, the Bellefonte Borough Council and Bellefonte HARB recognize 
the extraordinary personal and professional contribution of Patricia Long to historic preservation in 
Bellefonte, and express appreciation for her exemplary service on the Historic Architectural Review 
Board. 

RESOLVED this 2nd day of October 2023. 

ATTEST: BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

President, Borough Council 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 33 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 34 of 84



Marc McMaster 
Associate Broker  

RE/MAX Centre Realty 
1375 Martin Street, State College, PA 16803 

(814)231-8200 Ext. 379 
Marc@MarcMcMaster.com  

 
Education 
 
 Graduate, Spring Grove Senior High School-1996 
 Graduate, with Honors, Pennsylvania State University, 2005-Finance 
 
Activities – Past and Present 
 
 Licensed Real Estate Agent since 2004 
 Owner of RE/MAX Centre Realty since 2015 
 Centre County Association of REALTORS-MLS Committee Chairman  

Centre County Association of REALTORS-Board of Directors 2013-2018 
Centre County Association of REALTORS-Vice President 2016 
Centre County Association of REALTORS- President 2017 & 2018 
Pennsylvania Association of REALTORS-District 8 Vice President 2020 & 2021 

 Ferguson Township Planning Commission- Chairman 2015-2017 
State College Area School District-Facilities Committee 

 State College Area School District-Act 1 Tax Study Committee-2005 
 United States Army-Helicopter Crewchief and NRCM Flight Instructor 1996-2002 
 
Professional Designations 
 
 Certified Residential Specialist (CRS) 

Accredited Buyers Representative (ABR) 
 Certified Distressed Property Expert (CDPE) 
 NAR GREEN Designation (GREEN) 
 Electronic Professional (e-PRO) 
 Seller Representative Specialist (SRS) 
 Master Certified Negotiation Expert (MCNE)-Only 55 in Pennsylvania 
 Licensed Pennsylvania Real Estate Associate Broker 2010-Present 
 
Membership In Professional Organizations-Past and Present 
 
 Centre County Association of REALTORS 
 Pennsylvania Association of REALTORS 
 National Association of REALTORS 
 Real Estate Buyer Agents Council 
 Council of Residential Specialist 
References Available Upon Request 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 35 of 84



 
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURE REVIEW BOARD 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 

September 26, 2023 - 8:30 a.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The September 26, 2023, regular meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Historical 
Architecture Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. Members met in 
person.  
  
MEMBERS PRESENT:     Sam McGinley, Chair 

Amy Kelchner  
Gay Dunne 
Megan Tooker 
Mike Leakey 
Philip Ruth 
Walt Schneider 

  
ABSENT:    Maria Day 

Pat Long (RESIGNED) 
 

STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
  
GUESTS:    Joanne Tosti-Vasey 
    Julie Brooks 
    Marc McMaster 

  
  

Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
• Email from Amy about the Trinity Roof (discussion on gutters) 

 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: None  
  
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: Schneider motioned to approve the minutes 
of the September 12, 2023 meeting.  Dunne seconded. There was no discussion. 
Motion carried.    
 
Project Review:  
123 S. Spring Street (VFW) – Removal of damaged and falling brick  

• above solder course on front of the building.  
• Top cap to be replaced with new flashing.  
• Replace where applicable.  
• Exterior to be painted at later date 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 36 of 84

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
Sept 26, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 

• Gina sent photos of the VFW to HARB on 9/19. They show that the brick was 
originally red and has been painted yellow. The paint is peeling all over the 
building and is in bad shape. The recommendation would be to scrape/remove 
the paint before adding another layer and if permitted to re-paint, to use a high- 
quality latex paint that won’t be as susceptible to peeling in the future. Cleaning 
the brick and adding a primer first is recommended. 

• Photos can be found here: 
https://bellefontepamy.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_go
v/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C 

Leakey motioned to table until a representative from the VFW can be present at a 
meeting to discuss the project. Dunne seconded. No discussion. Motion to table 
carried. 

 
 
Administrative Approvals:  

• 102 S. Allegheny Street (Courthouse) – retaining wall and sidewalks 
• 109 E. Bishop (Elisabeth Joseph Jewelers) – Business sign 
• 251 N. Allegheny (Setaro) – Shed reconstructions in place of former outhouse 
• 222 W. High Street (Bush Arcade) – shingle to shingle replacement 
• 464 E. Curtin Street (White) – exterior paint (brick will not be painted) 
• 120 E. Cherry (Herlocker) – shingle to shingle replacement 
• 410 N. Allegheny (Tressler) – shingle to shingle replacement 

 

Old Business:  
• 128 W Howard Street (Trinity Church) – see Amy Kelchner’s email regarding the 

gutter replacement and installation and cost. 
o There was an extensive discussion regarding procedures for enforcement. 

 
• 225 W. Lamb Street – metal roof without HARB approval 

o Gina reached out to Solar Shield on 9/20/2023 and talked to a 
representative there. She explained the situation and asked that product 
information and spec information be emailed. Gina is waiting for that 
information. 
 

• 434 N. Spring Street – roof without HARB approval.  
o Gina sent a letter on August 2, 2023 with a deadline of August 31, 2023 to 

submit an application for the roof replacement that was done without prior 
HARB approval. 

o The property owner did not respond by the deadline. Can HARB enforce 
the ordinance using Centre Region Code?  

o It was determined that this matter would be discussed at a later time. 
 
 
New Business: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 37 of 84

https://bellefontepamy.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C
https://bellefontepamy.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/Eimjs_pKRO5Gssvw6rBbGdsBMPU9_90RfFdtyhy85d0E2g?e=LbPa8C


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
Sept 26, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

• Pat Long resignation (sent Sam McGinley a letter) 
o A note of thanks will be sent to Pat to thank her for her service to the 

board. 
 

• Marc McMaster, Real Estate Broker with Re/Max Centre Realty 
o Resume and volunteer application included in packet 
o Recommend approval for open real estate broker seat on HARB 

 
Schneider motioned and Dunne seconded to approve Marc McMaster to fill the 
Real Estate Broker Seat on the Board. No discussion. Motion carried. The 
recommendation will go for final approval by Council at their next meeting.   

 
• Opening of CLG proposals to update Design Guidelines 

o Budget of $15,000 
o Timeline of 1 year to completion 
o There were 4 proposals 

 Carmina Wood Design - $14,850 
 Design by CBL – Total Cost not to exceed $15,000 
 Landmarks SGA - $14,370 
 McKissick Arcitecture - $14,900 

o The proposals will be reviewed and discussed at the next meeting. 
 
 
Information/Discussion Items: 
• Gutters – K-style vs. Half rounds 

o There was an extensive discussion regarding HARB procedures and 
enforcements. 

 
Added by Gina: 
HARB recommended annual education for Council – an overview of the purpose of 
HARB and what HARB does and doesn’t review, how the process works, etc.  
Some ideas of education were to have Frank Grumbine give an overview for Council 
(similar to what he did before but going into more detail since he got the basics out of 
the way) and have CNET record it so it would be available to the public to view at their 
convenience.  
 
Public Comment:  
Added by Gina: 
Joanne Tosti-Vasey spoke about the porch addition at 435 N. Spring Street that was 
approved by HARB on August 8, 2023. The application did not have detailed plans of 
materials or drawings, but HARB approved the porch addition, with one nay vote.  
 
Marc McMaster gave a brief introduction and expressed his interest in serving on the 
HARB board.  
 
 
Adjournment:  
With no other business to come before HARB, the meeting adjourned at 9:35am.   
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 38 of 84



DOWNTOWN BELLEFONTE INC
MURAL PROJECT

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 39 of 84



CERTIFICATE of Appropriateness 

Request: HARB

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 40 of 84



According to the updated sign 
ordinance: 
https://ecode360.com/16149516

B. Murals and public art.
(1) All murals and public art in the 
Historic Districts are subject to HARB 
review and must obtain a certificate of 
appropriateness, as well as a permit 
from Bellefonte Borough.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 41 of 84



DBI MURAL PROJECT

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 42 of 84



As part of its revitalization efforts, Downtown 

Bellefonte Inc. is in the stages of commissioning a 

mural in the downtown area. In addition to our historic 

buildings, well-tended gardens, and clean sidewalks, 

public art can benefit our community. Public art 

enriches our communities, draws in tourists, 

encourages economic growth, and beautifies our 

town. Our hope is that by increasing the amount of 

public art in Bellefonte, we will continue to build on 

the quality of place efforts accelerated by Downtown 

Bellefonte Inc. 

• Incite experiential interactions for residents 
and visitors.

• Celebrate Bellefonte as a creative, forward-

thinking community with a high quality of 

life.

• Tell Bellefonte’s story, 
 both the past and today. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 43 of 84



MURAL SITE: 123 South Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 32-303-071)
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 44 of 84



MURAL SITE: 123 South Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 32-303-071)
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 45 of 84



MURAL SITE: 123 South Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 32-303-071)
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 46 of 84



MURAL SITE:123 South Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 32-303-071)
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 47 of 84



CREATIVE BRIEF

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 48 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 49 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 50 of 84



TIMELINE

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 51 of 84



PROJECT PHASESE
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 52 of 84



INTERNAL TIMELINEE

SEPTEMBER 2023

-DBI Mural Committee selected concept artwork

-Property Owner signed approval for concept artwork to be installed at 123 South Allegheny Street, Bellefonte, 

Pennsylvania (Tax Parcel No. 32-303-071) (9-11-2023)

-Request Certificate of Appropriateness from HARB

-Council Approvals of HARB recommendation

-Permit from Bellefonte Borough 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 53 of 84



KEY DETAIL

SELECTED ARTIST’S PREVIOUS 

WORK & RESUME

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 54 of 84



KEY DETAIL
Internationally-renowned 

KEY DETAIL, of New York 

City, is a husband-wife 

team. Andrei Krautsou and 

Julia Yu-Baba are mural 

artists who also work with 

paintings and illustrations.

A native of Belarus, KEY DETAIL has 

been active on the art scene since the 

early 2000s. KEY DETAIL has been 

creating mural art for more than twenty 

years and has installed murals all over 

Europe, Asia and U.S. They travel with 

their two young children, Max and Andy. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 55 of 84



6,000 sq ft

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 56 of 84



35’ x  60’ 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 57 of 84



Three Rivers

Geographically Fort Wayne is 

situated on the three rivers. Key 

Detail took it as inspiration and 

developed the design according 

to this theme. 

Three charming women 

symbolize three rivers. They 

depicted the women as beautiful 

water elements and painted fish, 

swans, ducks and other water 

creatures in the background add 

more intricacy to the mural. 

They also took into consideration 

the diversity of the population. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 58 of 84



In September 2019 the Mayor of 
Greencastle, IN, William A. Dory, Jr., Mayor 

awarded them for painting Indiana's 
largest mural. In June, 2023 they received 

two National Mural Awards: 
National Silver Award and Regional Gold 

Award for the mural they painted for LivCo 
Walls Mural Festival in Geneseo, NY, US.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 59 of 84



KEY DETAIL CONCEPT 
DBI MURAL PROJECT
In BELLEFONE, PA

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 60 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 61 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 62 of 84



EXCERPTS FROM 
DESIGN:
MATCH 
FACTORY

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 63 of 84



EXCERPT FROM DESIGN
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 64 of 84



EXCERPT FROM DESIGN Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 65 of 84



REQUEST: to obtain a certificate of appropriateness, as 

well as a permit from Bellefonte Borough

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 66 of 84



THANK YOU!

Prepared by A H Public Spaces Consulting, LLC | AHCONSULTINGLLC.COM

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 67 of 84



�����������	�
��� �����������������������������

�����	������������������� � ����!"�#��$���%��&'()*+�)��#,-).)/��)�0(�1�(�-).,/%2�&+�'*3�'-)��4�%�5*$6�78++9037�&56�7: ���

;<=�>?@@?ABCD?�EFGHCI�EDG??D�EDG??DJKLF?�MGBN?KD�EKO?PQ@?RSTUVW�XSVWYZ[UT�\W]SVWYZ[UT̂ _YVVỲSTaYbUcdSefgZh�ijkkjklkm�nlonp�qrsSoqVtuuU�RS]YZat�\UWS]YZat̂ _YVVỲSTaYbUcdSefn�UaaUv][YTau�wnlx�yz{zYVVỲSTaY�|bZhTd�|aZYYa�|aZYYauvUbY�}ZS~YvacbẀ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��¡������������������¢�������£������¢����¤�����¢������¥¦§̈©ªª̈¦ª«¦�����������¬¦ª®̄°±�²�������£�³��́²������µ���������������³������¶·̧¹º±�»�������¼�����½���¬¬��¬«¬©�¾�«¦��£¿̄±�¢�����¡�À�����́¢�����¡�À����µ���©¾«����¶Á��������¡���������́����������µ½����¤����������¶ÂÃ±�²����Ä�������́Å���µ���������������³������¶Á���������Æ������́�������µ���������������³������¶·ÇÈȨ́Ãº±�¢����¤�����¼������¼������¼��������������Å����¼��������Ê����£���������������Ë������������������������¤���¼������¼������¼��������������Å������¼���������������Ì���³����������������³�������¤����³����������������������������������ÍÎÏÐÑÒÑ�ÓÎÔÕ���Å�����������������£���¥¦§̈¬¥«̈ª©Ö©×ØÙØ�ÚÛÜ�ÝÞÐÛß�ÞàÛÑá�×â��Ýãäåæ�

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 68 of 84



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Bellefonte Spring Street 

Streetscape Project

51.5 days Tue 9/12/23 Wed 11/22/23

2 Notice to Proceed 0 days Tue 9/12/23 Tue 9/12/23

3 Submittals 10 days Tue 9/12/23 Mon 9/25/23

4 Survey 2 days Tue 9/12/23 Wed 9/13/23

5 Mobilize 0.5 days Mon 9/18/23 Mon 9/18/23

6 West High to Driveway 10 days Mon 9/18/23 Mon 10/2/23

7 Traffic Control Setup 1 day Mon 9/18/23 Tue 9/19/23

8 Demo 2 days Tue 9/19/23 Thu 9/21/23

9 Asphalt/Curb/Sidewalk1.5 days Tue 9/19/23 Wed 9/20/23

10 Install temp access 0.5 days Thu 9/21/23 Thu 9/21/23

11 Concrete 6 days Thu 9/21/23 Fri 9/29/23

12 Curbing 3 days Thu 9/21/23 Tue 9/26/23

13 Form/pour 2 days Thu 9/21/23 Mon 9/25/23

14 Strip/sawcut/backfill1 day Mon 9/25/23 Tue 9/26/23

15 Sidewalks 3 days Tue 9/26/23 Fri 9/29/23

16 Base 1 day Tue 9/26/23 Wed 9/27/23

17 Form/Pour 1 day Wed 9/27/23 Thu 9/28/23

18 Strip Forms/Caulking1 day Thu 9/28/23 Fri 9/29/23

19 Parking Meters and Signage1 day Fri 9/29/23 Mon 10/2/23

20 Driveway to Cherry St. Alley10 days Mon 10/2/23 Mon 10/16/23

21 Traffic Control Setup 1 day Mon 10/2/23 Tue 10/3/23

22 Demo 2 days Tue 10/3/23 Thu 10/5/23

23 Asphalt/Curb/Sidewalk1.5 days Tue 10/3/23 Wed 10/4/23

24 Install temp access 0.5 days Thu 10/5/23 Thu 10/5/23

25 Concrete 6 days Thu 10/5/23 Fri 10/13/23

26 Curbing 3 days Thu 10/5/23 Tue 10/10/23

27 Form/pour 2 days Thu 10/5/23 Mon 10/9/23

28 Strip/sawcut/backfill1 day Mon 10/9/23 Tue 10/10/23

29 Sidewalks 3 days Tue 10/10/23 Fri 10/13/23

30 Base 1 day Tue 10/10/23 Wed 10/11/23

31 Form/Pour 1 day Wed 10/11/23Thu 10/12/23

9/12

8/27 9/3 9/10 9/17 9/24 10/1 10/8 10/15 10/22 10/29 11/5 11/12 11/19 11/26 12/3

September October November December

Page 1

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 69 of 84



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

32 Strip Forms/Caulking1 day Thu 10/12/23 Fri 10/13/23

33 Parking Meters and Signage1 day Fri 10/13/23 Mon 10/16/23

34 Cherry St to end of 

Municipal Lot

17 days Mon 

10/16/23

Wed 11/8/23

35 Demo 1.5 days Mon 10/16/23Tue 10/17/23

36 Asphalt/Curb/Sidewalk1.5 days Mon 10/16/23Tue 10/17/23

37 Concrete 6 days Wed 10/18/23Wed 10/25/23

38 Curbing 3 days Wed 10/18/23Fri 10/20/23

39 Form/pour 2 days Wed 10/18/23Thu 10/19/23

40 Strip/sawcut/backfill1 day Fri 10/20/23 Fri 10/20/23

41 Sidewalks 3 days Mon 10/23/23Wed 10/25/23

42 Base 1 day Mon 10/23/23Mon 10/23/23

43 Form/Pour 1 day Tue 10/24/23 Tue 10/24/23

44 Strip Forms/Caulking1 day Wed 10/25/23Wed 10/25/23

45 Signage 1 day Thu 10/26/23 Thu 10/26/23

46 Smokers Express Frontage8.5 days Fri 10/27/23 Wed 11/8/23

47 Demo 1.5 days Fri 10/27/23 Mon 10/30/23

48 Asphalt/Curb/Sidewalk1.5 days Fri 10/27/23 Mon 10/30/23

49 Concrete 6 days Mon 10/30/23Tue 11/7/23

50 Curbing 3 days Mon 10/30/23Thu 11/2/23

51 Form/pour 2 days Mon 10/30/23Wed 11/1/23

52 Strip/sawcut/backfill1 day Wed 11/1/23 Thu 11/2/23

53 Sidewalks 3 days Thu 11/2/23 Tue 11/7/23

54 Base 1 day Thu 11/2/23 Fri 11/3/23

55 Form/Pour 1 day Fri 11/3/23 Mon 11/6/23

56 Strip Forms/Caulking1 day Mon 11/6/23 Tue 11/7/23

57 Signage 1 day Tue 11/7/23 Wed 11/8/23

58 Brick Pavers 10 days Wed 11/8/23 Wed 11/22/23

59 As-Built Drawings 0 days Wed 11/22/23Wed 11/22/23

60 Closeout Documentation 0 days Wed 11/22/23Wed 11/22/23

61 Final Completion 0 days Wed 11/22/23Wed 11/22/23

11/22

11/22

11/22

8/27 9/3 9/10 9/17 9/24 10/1 10/8 10/15 10/22 10/29 11/5 11/12 11/19 11/26 12/3

September October November December

Page 2

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 70 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 71 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 72 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 73 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 74 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 75 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 76 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 77 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 78 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 79 of 84



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 80 of 84



 
PO Box 1 

Snow Shoe, PA 16874 
P: 814.280.1111 
F: 814.387.4959 

 
 
To:  Bellefonte Borough 
Date: 9/29/23 
Project:  Parkview Heights Storm Water 
Att:  Don Holderman 
 
 
Don, 
 
   On behalf of John Nastase Construction Inc.  I would like to bring it to your attention that we had a 
major error within our bid for the Parkview Heights Stormwater Project.  I had misread  addendum #3 
and calculated the wrong station number for the described scope of the project.  I am unable to 
complete the required scope of work for the bid price I submitted.  I truly apologize for my mistake and 
any impacts that I may have caused for the Bellefonte Borough.  If at all possible I would like to officially 
withdraw our bid for this project.  I appreciate you understanding in this matter and look forward to 
working with you on future projects. 
 

Thank you, 
John Nastase 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 81 of 84



memo: 
Date: October 2, 2023 Council meeting 

To: Bellefonte Borough Council  

From: Julie Brooks 

Subject: Request to declare aggressive bees a nuisance 

I have received numerous complaints from neighbors of a property on East Bishop 
Street about stinging and extremely aggressive bees in the area. Neighbors have 
reported being stung repeatedly and several residents have reported the bees stinging 
dogs in the area also. I have included e-mails from residents received recently with 
this memo.   

I am requesting that Borough Council declare aggressive stinging bees a nuisance 
detrimental to public health as allowed in Bellefonte Borough nuisance code, included 
below. 

§ 377-1Abatement of nuisances.
No person shall maintain or permit to be maintained on any property owned
or occupied by him within the Borough any condition productive of a
nuisance detrimental to the public health or which may be so declared by
Council. Upon receipt of notice from Council that such condition exists on the
property owned or occupied by him, it shall be the duty of such person to
abate the nuisance created thereby to the satisfaction of Council within the
time limit specified in such notice, in default of which Council may cause the
abatement thereof and the Borough may collect the cost of such abatement,
with an additional charge of 10%, from such person in default.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 82 of 84

https://ecode360.com/14489209#14489211
https://ecode360.com/14489209#14489211


Greetings Borough, 
I wanted to reach out about some extremely aggressive bees we've had over the past 
few months in our backyard (my address is 320 E. Bishop St).  My kids first noticed it 
and while they luckily were not stung, we believe our dogs have been stung on 
numerous occasions.  They have had evenings where they have skin irritations and 
constant scratching.  This is a second home for us so we are only there maybe a 
couple weekends a month but it has caused us at times to not be able to be outside at 
all, especially in our backyard.  Even just simple yard maintenance tasks have been 
difficult for us since these bees are so aggressive and tend to go immediately to the 
head, face and neck area.   

It appears there is a neighbor a couple houses down that is harvesting bee hives.  I 
do not know them at all but I'm curious if the borough is aware of this and if that 
residence is meeting all the standards required to keep the bees safe/controlled.  It 
has become a regular nuisance for our trips to PA.  Appreciate your time and any help 
you can provide.  My full contact information below should you need to reach out. 

Best Regards, 
Eric McNett 
320 E Bishop St, Bellefonte, PA 
703-362-3467

: 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 83 of 84



-For the public Borough Council Meeting:

-We have had repeated encounters with stinging bees, biting bees, headbutting bees, and 
being chased out of our yard by aggressive bees for the last 7 to 8 years, from roughly April 
through October. People and pets have been stung yearly at least once, usually multiple times 
a year, and sometimes there have been multiple stings at one time to multiple people and pets.

-The homeowner has a severe bee allergy, requiring an epipen and prescription medication to 
manage the after-effects of bee stings.

-There have been multiple years of being unable to use the backyard for the month of May due 
to aggressive bees stinging, biting, chasing people, and dogs. The lawn does not get mowed, 
we have to walk our dogs elsewhere to use the bathroom, and we have been unable to safely 
access and utilize our yard, garden, or garage. We are unable to enjoy our backyard, sit out, 
grill, eat outside, yearly due to the bees chasing, stinging, and biting us when we attempt to do 
so.

-We are, at times, unable to maintain our property, including basic yardwork, maintenance, 
mowing, weedwhacking without negative bee encounters (stings, bites, chasing, headbutting 
by bees).

-We have bees flocking to our soaker hoses in our garden for fresh water making it difficult to 
weed, pick fruits and veggies, etc without bees coming after us as they cover the hoses and 
gather to drink from the puddles (There is no noticeable source of fresh water available 24/7 on 
the bee owner's property).

-The homeowner, who owns his own construction business, cannot safely and without bee 
interference, use his power tools in the backyard, access the garage, etc without bees stinging, 
biting, chasing, ongoing for 7 to 8 years when the bees are active (April-October). Projects and 
materials cannot be stripped or painted as it attracts the bees, as well.

-The homeowners have approached the bee owners repeatedly, at least once, if not twice a 
year, about this nuisance for multiple years. Two years ago we were told they would be moved 
to a Huntingdon County property. That has yet to occur and more bees and hives arrive yearly. 
The bee owners have suggested we avoid our yard when the bees are aggressive, wear lighter 
colored clothes so they don't think we're bears, and often tell us after we've been stung, that 
the bees were "riled up because their hives were being worked on." No prior warning is ever 
given in these instances.

-We have seen (and smelled) an increase in skunks and opossums in our yard, and even had 
a bear on the block in the last 2 years.

-In looking at bee ordinances in other boroughs and those recommended by Cornell and the 
PA Beekeepers Association these bees do not appear to be kept in a safe or recommended 
manner for their own good and/or the safety of the people of the neighborhood.

Mary Boyle-Fedor & André Fedor 
318 E Bishop St, Bellefonte, PA 16823 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet for October 2, 2023

Page 84 of 84


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA10022023
	EXECUTIVE SESSION--MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING Draft.09282023
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

	EXECUTIVE SESSION--EXHIBIT A  Documentation checklist
	WORK SESSION--Refuse, EMS, Fire Dept and Fire Equipment Funds with graphs
	WORK SESSION--Refuse, EMS, Fire Dept and Fire Equipment Funds.pdf
	09 Refuse Fund
	03 Fire Department Fund
	03 Fire Coverage
	04 Fire Equipment Fund
	70 EMS Fund
	70 EMS Fund
	WORK SESSION--EMS Funding Letter 2024 Bellefonte


	20230929122645683.pdf

	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA10022023
	COMMUNICATIONS--NEVI Community Conversations_PennDOT 2023_email-compressed (1)
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.090182023 DRAFT
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.090182023 DRAFT
	September 18, 2023

	REPORTS. Mayor--National Fire Prevention Week October 8-14, 2023
	REEPORTS.OCA--Memo, documents, action items
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 10.2.2023
	HARB Meeting Agenda 9.26.2023
	REEPORTS . OCA--Pat Long Recognition Resolution No. 10022023-01
	OCA--McMaster -- HARB broker seat nomination
	HARB Application
	5- Marc McMaster Resume

	OCA--HARB Minutes 09.26.2023 DRAFT
	REPORTS. OCA--DBI_ HARB Cert of Appropriateness Request 9_12_23_Council pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23
	Slide 24
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29


	OLD BUSINESS--Bellefonte Spring Street Streetscape Project
	Mail - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook
	Bellefonte Spring Street Streetscape Project

	OLD BUSINESS--EV Charging Stations and Request for Alternative Fuels Tax Memo
	OLD BUSINESS--Bellefonte Borough Withdraw
	NEW BUSINESS--Memo to council on agressive bees September 2023



